STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES FOR ESTABLISHING AND MANAGING CESSATION SERVICES IN HEALTHCARE FACILITIES

JANUARY 2025

Health Protection Agency Ministry of Health

VERSION 1 ISSUED: 11 JANUARY 2024



Table of Contents

Standard Operating Procedures for Establishing an	
in Healthcare Facilities Purpose	
•	
Scope	
Goals and Objectives	2
1. Minimum Criteria for Establishing Tobacco Cessat 1.1 Dedicated Space	2
1.2 Trained Personnel 1.3 Service Availability 1.4 Uasthe Facility Faced Daint	
1.4 Health Facility Focal Point 1.5 Patient-Centered Counseling and Follow-Up 1.6 Data Management and Reporting	
2. Service Provision	4
2.1 Main Components/Activities of the Program	
3. Program Details	
3.1 Participants/Health Professionals Involved in Impleme 3.2 Cessation Clinic Implementation Tasks	
3.3 Referral System	
4. Operational Guidelines	
4.1 Establishing Service Across the Three-Tier Healthcare	
4.2 Capacity Building and Training 4.3 Integration with Community Services	
4.5 Community Engagement	7
5. Referral Mechanisms	
5.1 Referral Criteria 5.2 Referral Procedures	
6. Guidelines, Standards, and Procedures for Program	
6.1 Program Guidelines and Standards	-
7. Monitoring and Evaluation	9
7.1 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)	
7.2 Reporting and Documentation	
8. Alignment with WHO Guidelines	
Annex 1: Patient Flow Chart for Tobacco Cessation C	linics9
Annex 2: Standardized Forms and Templates	
2.1 Tobacco Cessation Clinic Check List	
2.2 Fagerstrom scale _Smokeless Tobacco_Bilingual 2.3 Fagerstrom scale _E Cigarettes & Vapes_Bilingual	
2.4 Assessment on Tobacco cessation client assessment	
2.5 Tobacco Cessation Program Register	
Annex 3: Pharmacotherapy	
3.1 Sample NRT Prescription	

Standard Operating Procedures for Establishing and Managing Cessation Services in Healthcare Facilities

Purpose

This Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) establishes a framework for the development, operation, and monitoring of tobacco cessation services in the Maldives. It ensures cessation services are standardized, evidence-based, and aligned with the guidelines provided by the World Health Organization (WHO).

Scope

This SOP applies to all healthcare facilities in the Maldives tasked with providing tobacco cessation services, including tertiary hospitals, regional hospitals, and primary health centers. It outlines the minimum requirements, operational protocols, and monitoring mechanisms necessary for effective clinic functioning.

Goals and Objectives

- Establish a network of tobacco cessation clinics across the Maldives to provide accessible and effective cessation support.
- To facilitate the creation of a society free from the dangers of tobacco use by promoting awareness, education, and supportive interventions.
- To encourage and assist individuals who wish to quit tobacco use by providing evidence-based guidance and support.
- To offer accessible and high-quality cessation services for individuals seeking to quit tobacco, ensuring comprehensive support through counseling, follow-up, and effective treatment options.

1. Minimum Criteria for Establishing Tobacco Cessation Services

1.1 Dedicated Space

- Must ensure a private and confidential environment for counseling sessions.
- Adequate space should be allocated for the display of educational posters, information, education, and communication (IEC) materials.

- Must prominently display the national Quitline number (1676) in the counseling room.
- Existing doctor consultation rooms / PHU may also be utilized for providing tobacco cessation services, ensuring patient confidentiality and service quality.
- Cessation service / clinic should be in a visible location. The healthcare facility should advertise and promote to increase the visibility of cessation services.

1.2 Trained Personnel

 Must have at least one healthcare professional trained in tobacco cessation. This may include a doctor, nurse, health worker, other public health professional, or counselor with appropriate certification or training in tobacco cessation interventions.

1.3 Service Availability

Tobacco cessation services should be available on a regular basis, on designated days of the week, or as per the operational plan of the health facility.

If a patient seeks tobacco cessation services during non-working hours or on nonclinic days, the health facility must ensure the patient is attended to without delay.

This can be achieved by:

- Arranging on-call services by trained healthcare personnel via National Quitline.
- Providing teleconsultation options to address the immediate needs of the patient and scheduling follow-up visits as required.
- Establishing a mechanism to document and address urgent requests for cessation services outside regular hours.

1.4 Health Facility Focal Point

Each health facility providing tobacco cessation services must designate a focal point responsible for coordinating and overseeing the cessation program.

The focal point will ensure the availability of trained personnel, medication and compliance with guidelines, and proper data management.

1.5 Patient-Centered Counseling and Follow-Up

Individual patient counseling sessions should be scheduled, and appointments must be provided based on patient and provider availability.

In cases where in-person follow-up is not feasible, teleconsultation follow-ups should be planned and implemented to ensure continuity of care.

1.6 Data Management and Reporting

All data generated from the tobacco cessation service must be systematically recorded and maintained in a standardized digital format.

Healthcare facilities should utilize the prescribed data entry template provided in the annex to ensure uniformity and ease of reporting.

2. Service Provision

2.1 Main Components/Activities of the Program

2.1.1 Identifying Tobacco Users and Providing Cessation Support

- Arrangements must be made within hospitals or health center services to identify tobacco users among individuals seeking healthcare services.
- This involves:
 - Asking every individual seeking health services about their tobacco use habits, including the type and quantity of tobacco used.
 - Clarifying and documenting this information.
 - Encouraging those who use tobacco to consider quitting and informing them about the cessation services available.
- Efforts should be made to discourage tobacco use and protect individuals from the dangers of tobacco, especially in healthcare settings.
- Patients who express interest in quitting should be actively encouraged to seek cessation services.

2.1.2 Expanding Access to Cessation Services

- Ensure that arrangements are in place to allow individuals to request cessation services via phone and email.
- Develop a system for responding to remote requests and providing appropriate support.

2.1.3 Arrangements for Medicines and Items Used for Tobacco Cessation

Availability of Medicines and Items

• Medicines and other products to assist with quitting tobacco use should be made available to participants upon a doctor's prescription.

• Information on how to obtain these items should be provided, and assistance should be offered in case they are unavailable.

3. Program Details

3.1 Participants/Health Professionals Involved in Implementing the Program

The following parties will be involved in the implementation of the cessation program:

- **Reception/Memo Preparation/Registration**: Arrangements should be made for identifying individuals seeking to quit tobacco use through the reception and registration process.
- **Doctor Consultations**: Arrangements should be made for consultation services where individuals will be referred to appropriate healthcare providers.
- Health Screening and Laboratory Testing: Screening and lab tests will help in identifying any tobacco-related health conditions and will be part of the overall assessment for providing cessation services.
- **Provision of Health Information and Services**: This will take place through clinics such as NCD clinics, antenatal clinics, and other relevant health services.
- Participants wishing to quit should be identified, and relevant information should be documented using a designated form, which will be submitted to the cessation clinic by the respective parties.

3.2 Cessation Clinic Implementation Tasks

- Public Health Workers/Community Health Workers/Family Health Workers: These staff members will assist in identifying individuals seeking to quit and will guide them through the process as well as offer cessation advice to clients.
- **Nurses**: Nurses will provide support for tobacco cessation, offering advice and monitoring progress.
- **Doctors**: Medical professionals will oversee the cessation process and prescribe appropriate treatments.
- **Volunteers**: Members of associations or other volunteers dedicated to tobacco control will assist in the implementation of services.

3.3 Referral System

• Mechanisms for referring patients to higher-level facilities or mental health services as necessary.

4. Operational Guidelines

4.1 Establishing Service Across the Three-Tier Healthcare System

4.1.1Tertiary Care Level:

• Services Offered:

- Comprehensive services including advanced pharmacotherapy, individual, and group counseling.
- Diagnostic tools such as carbon monoxide (CO) monitors.
- Role:
 - Serve as training and referral hubs.
 - Handle complex cases (e.g., co-occurring conditions).
 - Pilot new cessation interventions.

4.1.2 Secondary Care Level (Regional Hospitals):

• Services Offered:

- Intermediate cessation services including individual counseling and basic pharmacotherapy.
- Role:
 - Act as intermediary hubs.
 - Organize regional training.
 - Report cessation data to the central monitoring body.

4.1.3Primary Care Level (Health Centers/Posts):

• Services Offered:

- Basic cessation support using the WHO "5 A's" framework.
- Intermediate cessation services including individual counseling and basic pharmacotherapy.
- Community engagement to promote cessation services.
- Role:
 - Serve as the first point of contact.
 - Conduct awareness campaigns.
 - Collect and submit patient data

4.2 Capacity Building and Training

- Conduct regular training sessions, ensuring all tiers are equipped to provide tierappropriate cessation services
- Staff involved in delivering tobacco cessation services will receive appropriate training to help them understand the program, raise awareness, and carry out their tasks effectively.

- Training will be provided by the Health Protection Agency (HPA) and will be delivered through both online and physical sessions.
- The training will include detailed information on cessation methods, communication skills for working with individuals, and the use of cessation products.

4.3 Integration with Community Services

• Collaborate with community organizations, councils, schools, and NGOs to enhance service accessibility and promote awareness.

4.5 Community Engagement

- Partner with local councils, schools, and NGOs to increase awareness.
- Leverage mass media campaigns to encourage individuals to seek cessation support.

5. Referral Mechanisms

To establish clear criteria and procedures for referring patients from tobacco cessation clinics to higher-level facilities or specialized care, ensuring seamless care coordination and optimal patient outcomes.

5.1 Referral Criteria

Patients should be referred to specialized care under the following conditions:

- Complex Medical Needs:
 - Patients with severe tobacco-related health conditions (e.g., chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, cardiovascular disease, or cancer) requiring specialist intervention.
- Co-Occurring Mental Health Disorders:
 - Individuals presenting with mental health conditions, such as depression, anxiety, or substance use disorders, that complicate cessation efforts.
- Treatment Resistance:
 - Patients who have not responded to first-line cessation interventions (e.g., counseling and pharmacotherapy) after multiple attempts.
- Pregnant Tobacco Users:
 - Pregnant individuals needing specialized counseling and monitoring for cessation.
- Youth and Adolescents:

• Adolescents requiring age-appropriate interventions and counseling.

5.2 Referral Procedures

1. Initial Assessment and Documentation:

- Conduct a thorough assessment to determine the need for specialized care.
- Document the patient's medical history, tobacco use history, and any previous cessation attempts.

2. Prepare a Referral Note:

- Provide a detailed referral note, including:
 - Patient's personal and medical information.
 - Summary of the assessment and reasons for referral.
 - Summary of cessation interventions provided to date.

3. Identify Appropriate Referral Facility:

• Based on the patient's needs, identify the nearest or most suitable referral center:

4. Coordinate with the Receiving Facility:

- Communicate directly with the receiving facility to ensure they are prepared to handle the referral.
- Share relevant patient records securely to maintain confidentiality.

5. Provide Patient Guidance:

- Inform the patient and/or their caregiver about the referral process, including the reason for referral and what to expect at the referred facility.
- Assist with appointment scheduling, if required.

6. Follow-Up on Referral:

- Maintain communication with the receiving facility to monitor the patient's progress.
- Schedule follow-up visits at the originating clinic to provide ongoing support and ensure continuity of care.

6. Guidelines, Standards, and Procedures for Program Implementation

6.1 Program Guidelines and Standards

- The cessation clinic will operate based on guidelines and standards provided by the Health Protection Agency (HPA).
- These guidelines will ensure that the program maintains high standards of care and that individuals seeking to quit tobacco use receive the most effective support available.

7. Monitoring and Evaluation

7.1 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

- Number of patients enrolled in cessation clinics.
- Quit rates at 1 month, 3 months, and 6 months post-enrollment.
- Proportion of patients receiving pharmacotherapy and counseling.
- Rates of relapse and follow-up compliance.

7.2 Reporting and Documentation

- Establish a national patient registry to track individual progress and clinic performance.
- Clinics must submit monthly reports to the Ministry of Health detailing patient statistics and outcomes.

7.3 Annual Review

• Conduct an annual review of all clinics to identify gaps, evaluate progress, and refine operational protocols.

8. Alignment with WHO Guidelines

This SOP adheres to:

- 1. FCTC Article 14: Guidelines for integrating cessation support into healthcare systems.
- 2. MPOWER Strategy: Focus on "Offer help to quit tobacco use."
- 3. WHO Toolkit for Cessation Interventions: Best practices for counseling, pharmacotherapy, and program implementation

Annex 1: Patient Flow Chart for Tobacco Cessation Clinics

1. Registration

• Patients register at the clinic by providing basic demographic information and completing the necessary intake forms.

2. Assessment

• A trained healthcare provider conducts an initial assessment to determine the patient's level of tobacco dependence and readiness to quit.

- Use standardized assessment tools, including:
 - Tobacco use history.
 - Dependence level evaluation.
 - Identification of co-occurring conditions (if any).

3. Counseling and Intervention

- Offer tailored cessation support based on the assessment:
 - **Counseling:** Provide individual or group counseling sessions using evidencebased approaches such as motivational interviewing or cognitive behavioral therapy (CBT).
 - **Pharmacotherapy:** Prescribe and provide nicotine replacement therapy (NRT) or non-nicotine medications as per WHO guidelines.

4. Follow-Up

- Schedule regular follow-up appointments to monitor progress, address challenges, and reinforce cessation strategies.
 - First follow-up: Within one week of the initial session.
 - Subsequent follow-ups: At 1 month, 3 months, and 6 months post-enrollment, or as needed.
- Use follow-up visits to:
 - Track patient progress.
 - Adjust treatment plans if required.
 - Offer continued motivation and relapse prevention support.

Annex 2: Standardized Forms and Templates

2.1 Tobacco Cessation Clinic Check List

TOBACCO CESSATION CLINIC

CHECK LIST

Assessment	
Doctor consultation.	-
Health Education.	\neg
Benefits of smoking and quitting exercise	
Setting a quit date	
Identifying my reason to quit exercise	┥
Why I smoke test	\neg
Information on Cravings	
Information on Withdrawal symptoms	
Triggers exercise.	
Coping strategies for the triggers and withdrawal symptoms	
Making a plan for the quit day	۲
Self-help book	_
Helpful websites	

2.2 Fagerstrom scale _Smokeless Tobacco_Bilingual

FTND for Nicotine dependent	су	ع (د سود مرض / حرفه) و	ی ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵
	» ° ° د بر <i>ب</i> سه	tick (✓) on most appr	نىڭرۇ سەۋۇرىكر ئەندۇ ۋىز ئۆتۈتۈمەر (√) خۇرىرە. opriate answers
Within 5 minutes	3□	سیر و درمه میرد در روه و درم و همرد در	درد، در
Within 5-30 minutes	2□	روره 30-5 جسرع، میتردر	אונו ו ההונים? הפס את הפראתם:
Within 31-60 minutes	1 🗆	روم 31-60 جسر عد مدرد بر	How soon after you wake up to do you place your first dip?
After 60 minutes	0□	ر و و 60 د سرع و ر شر	
1 sachet or pouch tobacco	0□	،،،، دەرە [بۇماھ قرمىر ئۆھ	יסיייד יד יסייד () יסי כסיר) יסי כסיר יסי יסי דע פרע עס דע דעיד צעש בקייד צעייד פי שיית יע יע יע פייד. יע
2-3 sachets or pouches	1 🗆	2-3 בכבתו בית בית	How many cans/pouches per week do you use?
> 3 sachets or pouches	2□	יייסכי היס געשתפת ביתרית	
Always	2□	א א כ י י י י ארש דת פיייים	ני מינים ני גע בי מי מי בי מי גע בי בי מי איין איי בי בי איים? בעינ בי בי גע בי
Sometimes	1 🗆		How often do you intentionally swallow tobacco juice?
Never	0□	0 × 1 × 0 0 0 × 0 0 × 0 0 × 0 0 × 0 0 × 0 0 × 0 0 × 0	
The first one in the morning	1□	ד	

Any other / no difference	0□	ג א ג א ג א ג ג ג א ג א ג ג ג א ג ג ג ג	202 0 20 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
based on time		שים אל	Which chew would you hate to give up most?
Yes	1 🗆	424 VЛЛ	דער אין
No	0□	כב ג גע עיק עק ע	کن و و د میں (د و مر مر موجو مر و شر د میں (د میں) Do you chew more
			frequently during the first hours after awakening than
			during the rest of the day?
Yes	1 🗆	и с # УЛЛ	שת ל היא ה (ביישת אית צייר ל גם היי בי אים אים ביי אים אים אים אים אים אים אים אים אים א
No	0□	כר ב גע ער ער ע	ین د ۵ د ۵ بین ؟ صلومانو ما عرفره ی (تورمو تر و مرفره ی سر تورفره .) صلومانو ما عرفره ی (تورمو تورمو تو مار تورفره .)
			Do you chew if you are so ill that you are in bed most of the day?
		ز فور در مرسم : Total Score)
Mild	1-2	ר רי רי אראס א : עז עז עת	ידי ג'יייט מייט ג'יייט ג'יייט ג'ייט ג'י איין ג'ייט ג'יי
mild to moderate	3-4	ד די איז איז איז איז איז איז איז איז איז אי	ייג ג ייג ייג א ייג ייג ייג ייג ייג ייג
Moderate	5-7	כ י י כ 0 י י י י 0 זע : כ בתכינת ס זעיות	المرتز ج تررز کا ترسور المرتز ما تو المرتز ما ترسور المرتز الما تر المرتز الما تر المرتز الما تر المرتز الما ت
Severe	+ 8	ב ה : כים ביינפיניים / 220 ג : בים ביינפיניים / 220	سر تل چ شر م ک ک ک ک ک ک ک ک ک ک ک ک ک ک ک ک ک ک

2.3 Fagerstrom scale _E Cigarettes & Vapes_Bilingual

FTND for Nicotine dependent	су	و سود مرج / حور) و	× 100 0 0 10 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0			
	د » د مرسو	نَعْدُوْ سَعُوْوَمَنَدْ مُعْدَة وَتُوْ عَوْفَوْمَهِ (٧) خَرْمَدُه appropriate answers تَعْدُوُ سُعُوْوَمَنْ مُ				
Within 5 minutes	3□	سیسی 5 جسرع د مورد بر روم 5 جسرع د مورد بر	דידי דידי דידי איז איז איז איז איז איז איז איז איז אי			
Within 5-30 minutes	2□	ر مرحد 30-5 جسرے د مدید در	How soon after you waking do you vape your first e cigarette?			
Within 31-60 minutes	1□	روم 31-60 جسر عد مرمدد ب				
After 60 minutes	0□	ر و و 60 د سرع و ر شر				
Less than 10 times	0□	10 הקות ההתפת בבת ברית	ד איז ג'ים איז ג'יע ג'ים איז 20 ג'ים איז איז ג'י ג'יי דע פתיע עיז ג'יג ג'ייג ג'ייים שיינייגע איז גייג א' שפים' יינייג			
between 11-20	1□	11- 20 مَرْمِ فَرْجَعْر	שט כ ר ם C ? פ ג ע זפינרס:			
between 21-30	2□	21- 30 مَدْمِ عَرْجَعْر	How many times a day do you vape?			
More than 31	3□	31 יינית ההיפי ביילהיי				
Yes	1□	4 L # 7 Л	נים הכים הכים הכי כי כ			
No	0□	כד ג גו הקנות ש	Do you find it difficult to refrain from vaping in places where it is forbidden			
The first one in the morning	1□	ד א א א א א א א א א א א א א א א א א א א	10) 01-100 10 22 20 200 2000 2000 2000 2000			
Any other / no difference	0□	1) 10 גרר גרו 0 הריית איד פצים במצה שא ה	Which vaping would you hate most to give up?			
based on time		ייס ג'יס ג'יס ג'יס ג'יס ג'יס ג'יס ג'יס ג				
Yes	1□	U L & V Л Л	דא דיין איין איין איין איין איין איין אי			
No	0□	כר ג' גע מתמת ע	Do you vape more frequently in the morning?? مرجوع			
Yes	1□	22 C P 2 A A	שת האר האר (ביי איני בית בי הי הי הי הי הי הי ה			
No	0□	דר ג ג) נת עק ע	שט ש כ ס כ י ס כ י כ כ שט כ י ס כ י ס כ י ישר אייני פ י			
			Do you vape even if you are sick in bed most of the day?			
		ز فی ور در منابع : Total Score				

Mild	1-2	سرمز جامر ۵۰ مرم ۵۰ مرد : ۲۰ / ۲۰۰۰	ל אין
mild to moderate	3-4	سرم هر ۵۰ ۵۰ مرک ۲۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۲ ۲۵ سرم ج سرم ۵ ۵ ۳۰۰۰ ۵ در سرو ۲۰ ۲ ۲۰ ۲۰ ۲۰ د در شرو ۲۰ ۲۰	ס ג כ בייקפ אנ
Moderate	5-7	سرماج ۵٫۵ ۵۵ ۵۴ ۵ د ۵٫۶ : د د د د د د د د د د د د د د د د د د	Nicotine dependence based on scores
Severe	+ 8	سرتز مرد هی مرد و مروند : در و شرو برسر / ۲۰۰۵	

2.4 Assessment on Tobacco cessation client assessment and follow-up form

			assessment form -	
	د که نمر (Mob):	ىكرە ئە (NID): بۇر بىر	ىترىش(Name): سترىشر	
			مَوبير (Date):	
ه م م م م م م م م م م م م م م م م م م م	ט דו אינט גע אין	טי ה וכ ט ס כ ה כ ס טיי א שיי צפי הצת ק א ע שיייי א צפי ייצ א א	۵۰۵ ۵۰۵ ۲۰۰۰ ۲۰۵۵ ۲۰۰۵ ۵۰۰۰ ۵۰۰۵ ۲۰ ۵۰۰ ۲۰ ۸۸۵ و ۲۰۰۰ ۲۰۰۰ ۲۰۰۰ ۲۰۰۰ ۲۰۰۰ ۲۰۰۰ ۲۰۰۰	•1
-		currently or in the past? Yes /		
	د درمی د قرمی	א י-הרג ברי-הצירו הגורו האוריי אי י-הרג ברי-הצירו הגורבצי מעביין ייי	ד 10 - דגא - דגר 10 איז 20 א 10 א 20 א 10 א 10 א 10 א דער איז ד דער דער דער איז	·2
you have any of th	ne following conditions of	currently (mostly caused by tobac	co)? Please (✓) if any	
Heart disease	د ، بر برمری صور	Asthma	۵۰ ۵ ۵ سرح بر موسر	
troke	ם ם ייס ב ייס ייס ייס ייס ייס ייס ייס ייס י	Long term cough	د سر د سر مر مر مر مر مر مر مر مر مر مر د سر د سر مر سر مر مر مر مر مر مر مر مر مر	
ancer	، ۵ ر د رسترسو بر	COPD		
iabetes	ת ב ב ת תע את שת	Other respiratory illness	מואי אירם אמו אירם איר	
idney disease	0) ر ما ځ مار ک کار ر ال ر	Chest pain /dyspnea on exertion	ג גם גם כל כל כל של לי	
ther NCDs	220 כל 20 00 יו 200 הרעות בתצבת צות שהותה	Gastritis / GERD	د مرسر در سرار مرسر در مرسر د سرای سر ی در مرسر در شر	
loarseness of voice	יים ב 🗙 מ- ב ב ב ב ב ב כ הית ב מית איז מצמ מית	Sinusitis	سَوْرِسَتْ فَرْعَ فَوْسَ الْسَوْرِسَ وَدُسَوَرُ	
others	،، من ، ۵۰ مرسر مند:	Ear infection	- 0 - 2 - 3 - 0 - 0 - 2 - 7 - ۲ - 4 - 5 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7	
pecify):			1	
	و ۵۰۰۰ مرکز کرو و مرسمو	ר מרי רא גע אין	ג א א א א א א א א א ג ג ג ג ג ג ג ג ג ג	.3
Are you allergi	to any medication? Ye	s / No. If yes name of the drugs a	and issues occurred:	
	(Assessing Read	ۇ دَرِرَقَ جِنْرُوَنْمُ خُوْسُ (liness to quit	ד 6 - 7 5 0 5 א ד ד ד 5 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0	.4
у/ US/N : Д	Do you want or would yo	ou like to be a non-tobacco user	ר ב כ ב כ , כ כ ב כ כ כ ל ב כ כ כ כ מ מי מי מי כ י כ כ כ כ כ כ כ כ	• سو
			ג מרג אין גער	

Question 1	Yes مُدسو	ىردىنرەنىرىر Unsure	مرسر <i>مرو</i> No
Question 2	Yes גרייל	ىردىنرە ىزىر Unsure	شرسر <i>سرو</i> No

 $\left(\tilde{r}_{n} \tilde{r}_{n} \tilde{r}_{n} \tilde{r}_{n} \right)$ $\tilde{s}_{n} \tilde{s}_{n} \tilde{s}_{n}$

Any answer in **shaded area** indicates that tobacco user is not ready to quit, thus deliver 5R's intervention using motivational interviewing and motivation tools. If answer to Q1 is Yes (in **white area**), check level of confidence about quitting. If level of confidence is below 5, provide START tips and re-assess at end of interview. Repeat this assessment at each interview, including during follow-ups (if quit, confidence on maintaining).

(confidence : جُرُسْرُوَمُوْدُ بِرَضْمُ مُوَسْرُ نَادَى بَرَةُ لَمَ يَوْسُرُ نَادَى بَرَةُ مُوْسُرُ) عُوْسُر (بِحُومَتُهُ / confidence):
 How confident are you that you can quit tobacco use on a scale of 0-10?

Not con	fident at all	ים ככם תכ יתית	י פידעית וציי	-911	1 2	3	4 5	6	7	8 9	10	Very	confident	יאית וצביית ניצית וצביית	é
	د رحر .	יק בסק בתוכ בחיבו	0	، د د مرسوه	כ 0 ג כ בקיית ו קס	•••••	م م م م م .	2 2 2 C	ر کر کرد	م تر سر	>> "> " +	کې مرکبون	ر ده ر د محر قرمی	۵۵٬۵۰ و در ۲۸۸ و تو	•5
At w	hat age did yo	u start usi	ng tobacco?												
				د ، ۵۰ د مرد .	י אייק 60 א עייק 60 א	بترسرير	גרית שיר	د در در می	ه ر د ۲ موحو ۲ د	1 " C 9 @ SS	כ 0 / כ דקיית צ י	5225	، در د مرد بر، حدید	בת פצ תי	·6
Duri	ng the past	year, w	hich of the												
		:	ه د در در سرر	ہ رہ ہتر قرحہ	ר אין דיין	0 J.	د من من من مربع / ح مربر	-^-	i	# 7 7 7 7 E S E S		<u>رە مۇ</u> سەرىخ	200	000 سود برج مرج	
Cigar	ette Ciga	rs /Bidi	Shisha		E ciga	rettes	s / Vape		S	mokele	ess tob	acco	others:		
8	8-				U										

Assessment of Nicotine Dependance and need for NRT .7

Fagerstrom Scale for Nicotine Dependance: Cigarettes and E-cigarettes

(for Chewing tobacco - use Fagerstrom scale for chewing tobacco)

FTND for Nicotine dependent	су	$\begin{pmatrix} x & x & x & x \\ y & y & y & y \\ y & y & y & y \\ y & y &$					
	» د برماسه	نَعْشَرُدُ سَمُوْتُوَمَنَتُ رُسْرُدُ ثُنَتْ عَرْضُوْتُهِ (٧) عَرْسَرُوْ. tick (٧) on most appropriate answers					
Within 5 minutes	3□	سیسی 5 جسرع د موند در روه 5 جسرع د موند در	ניני ניתו 2000 אין				
Within 5-30 minutes	2□	ر مرحد 5-30 وسرع د مدمدد	How soon after you wake up do you smoke your first cigarette?				
Within 31-60 minutes	1 🗆	ر فرمد 31-60 جسر عد موتد در					
After 60 minutes	0□	ر و در 60 د سرع و رسر					
Less than 10	0□	10 יידע ההידע בבעית שליית ההידע בבעית	<u>Cigarettes:</u>				
between 11-20	1□	11- 20 مدر فرد فر	ראיר די מוט אנגר איין איין איין איין איין איין איין איי				
between 21-30	2□	21- 30 مدم فرح فر	How many cigarettes per day do you smoke?				
More than 31	3□	31 עציע ההינצי בייתרית	<u>E-cigarettes:</u>				
			נאיר גם ייר געושט אר מרי לי א איאי גר איין איין איין גר איין איין געושין גר איין איין געושין געושין געושין געוש בעפתי עיפה זיר גייין איין איין איין געושין בא איין געושין בא געובים				
			How many times a day do you vape?				
Yes	1 🗆	U L # V Л Л	ניס גבי 6 גיע דער דער גע				
No	0□	כב ג 22 נית נית ע	Do you find it difficult to refrain from smoking in places where				
			it is forbidden				
The first one in the morning	1 🗆	ד א א א א א א א א א א א א א א א א א א א	ג ג ג ג ג ג ג ג ג ג ג ג ג ג ג ג ג ג ג				
Any other / no difference	0□	ייי ייי ייי אייי אייי אייי הרייתריית פבסביציא שיייי אייי	Which cigarette would you hate most to give up?				
based on time		פיע היצה איר היויים יים פיע היצה איר אירים					
Yes	1 🗆	U L # V ЛЛ	דארט טוס הדדה ארך אר בין דער דער ארט בין ארט				
No	0□	כב ב גע מתמת ע	0 6 2 6 2 0 0 0 0 ת				

			Do you smoke more frequently during the first hours after waking
			than during the rest of the day?
Yes	1 🗆	и с 4 ИЛЛ	מילי גע
No	0□	כר ש של ער ער ע	۵
			Do you smoke when you are so ill that you are in the bed most of
			the day?
		ر فوفر ڈیریسہ : Total Score	
Mild	1-2	ר רי (ידים א : עצ / עצעת	و د ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۲ ۲ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۲ × ۵ ۵ ۵ ۲ ۵ ۵ ۵ ۵
mild to moderate	3-4	ר ריגר ג'ר סיר סיר ג'ר א ג' עצעת - כבקביית פאמית	د د د
Moderate	5-7	כ י כ 0 י י י י 0 זי : כ דיקביית פ זיכ זית	المرتز ج شررتر کا ترسیکو میں اللہ میں اللہ کا میں اللہ کا میں اللہ کا میں اللہ کا میں کا میں کا میں کا میں کا م
Severe	+ 8	ר ר 0 / 1 / 0 א : כת כית פעית פעת # /	× 0 , 0 , 7 , 4 % 0 , ייקע שית הית ש א
			· · · ·

Experience of Previous Quit attempts			ד 0 אי ד גם ד 2 א ד גם גם 8- גרש תברת עיז פית בי-ייאר עיז
Have you ever tried to quit tobacco before? Yes /	If yes مَرْسٌ سَرَدَ،	и с # УЛЛ	
No			ג א ז) אנייגע
How many times have you tried to quit?			ד 60 ז ר 0 - 20 ר 0 - 20 - 20 ארש פית בי-נרטפיא א א ארג ציר זב.
Last quit date (approximate):) 0) - 10 0 0 % 0 - 0 - 0 % 0 % 0 אייקר גרית - ארשקית באראס _ר את פיציר:
Longest duration of abstinence:			כס כט ס כאר כבים כט ככ כט כנ ס ככ כט כנ ס כנ כי כט בע
Things you did maintain as a successful quitter:		: כ גם גם גם פית מית הציקה:	א די דבי בסיבו 6 ביצב די בינם ביב מפדר במצח ביצר בסיב האיין הבקיינו איין הצביר מצו
Barriers to quit:			ב 6 א ב ג 6 א א ב ב א ג 6 ג 0 ג 0 ג 0 גרש פבית אב תוסית פ איתס ריסר.
Reason/s for relapse:		د د	رمع ودر زیرم مذیر / میرمه وردر دور به
כב ש ש ש ויק מק מו פי	ננג 100 05 בית המער	% 0 % 2 ک حوحو ک)1. دهمود در ده ده ده ده دو ده دود. 10. دهمود در در دهد در سومدر و مردو.
Do you have family members who use tobacco	-	if Yes Who is	
Close family member (spouse/parents/siblings/ grand parent	nts /children/)		در بخرى خسر فريس (ترسر جو تر / يو بر و تر اخر بر شرط كر بر شر / كر بو سر
			/مره مرد

Do you have friends who use tobacco? Yes / No. if Yes Who is he/she?

Close friends / classmates	الله مدرد مور مرسر / مرعد بر بروش مرشر و رش / مرسر
Coworkers	0) (۲) ۲۰ ۵۰ ۵۲ ۲۰ ۵۲ ۲۰۱۸ و سهر ۲۰ ۲۰ ۲۰ ۲۰ ۲۰ ۲۰ ۲۰ ۲۰ ۲۰ ۲۰ ۲۰ ۲۰ ۲۰
Someone living together	

$\frac{12}{6} \frac{1}{6} \frac{1$

13. Tips given for Quitting

Tips given	(✔)	Specific tips/alternatives selected by client
START		
4Ds / other alternatives for dealing with cravings		
Withdrawals and how to deal		
Alternative behavior after meals		
Alternative behavior early morning		
Alternative behavior at other difficult times (specify)		
Avoid coffee / areca nuts / unhealthy things		
Avoiding other triggers:		
Make home and workplace smoke-free (including balcony, toilet, etc.)		
Choose places where people don't smoke for leisure (restaurants, places to walk/relax, etc.)		
Tell people not to smoke near you (actively)		
Other Remarks		

14. <u>*Re-assessing Readiness to Quit</u>* (to be repeated at end of interview if not ready or low confidence at start of interview)</u>

وروزور مسمورو ورارش ردر عدار مدر مدر مدر وروز وروز وروز وروز مدون مدور (Reassessing Readiness to quit Y/US/N: Do you want or would you like to be a non-tobacco user يرم تشرشر ورياش ورياش ورياش في المالي المالي الم ترمند المروني ال رُمَن Yes Question 1 ىر يىر مىرىتر Unsure بىر يىر مىر Yes גריים No سرسرسو No Question 2 • --3: در شریر کرد کر مرجر در در محرف کر مرج کر کر مرج کر کر مرکز کر کر مرکز کر مرکز کر کر مرکز کر مرکز کر مرکز کر مرکز کر در مرکز How confident are you now that you can quit tobacco use on a scale of 0-10? مَدْدَخْتُ حَمَرْمَاتُر مَرْدِيْتُرَدْ تَتَرْشُر Not confident at all 1 2 3 4 5 6 8 9 10 Very confident פאצת והצית 7 Counselling given by: **Planned Quit Date:**

	C !		P
Prescription: Y / N; Date:	Given	by:	Dr.

Medicines prescribed:

Nicotine patchmg/day forwks

Nicotine chewing gummg, 1/1-2 gums SOS for cravings, maxtimes/day, no. of pieces......

Plan for NRT by doctor (see prescription):

Given / sent to patient:

Prescription START tips flier QuitStart or other Quit smoking App link My Reasons for Quitting Smoking Reminder card (for those who need additional encouragement) Pros and cons of quitting smoking table (for those not ready to quit yet)

Follow-up Schedule & Notes

Next	Follow-up	Attended	Follow-up notes/ Remarks
date		by	(Note: Quit or not/Actual quit date/Challenges/withdrawals/frequency of cravings: Suggested specific
			behavioral methods, medicines with doses, management Plan if any changes)
-			

2.5 Tobacco Cessation Program Register

					_	_		Tobacco Ces	sation Pro	gram Re	gister						-		
Fi	Date of First visit (DD/MM/		ID card /	DOB (DD/MM/				Contact	Planned Quit Date (DD/MM/	e F/II Visit dates (DD/MM/YYY)						Staff	i Treatment given	Quit date	
Reg No	YYYY)	Name	PP No.	YYYY)	Age	Sex	Address	Mob. No.		1wk	1mth	2mth	3mth	6mth		ble	(counseling/ NRT)	YYYY)	Not contactable)
												-							
<u> </u>											1	+	-						
											1	1	-						
											1	1							
<u> </u>																			
											-								
<u> </u>											1								
											1								
<u> </u>											1								
											1	1							

Annex 3: Pharmacotherapy

3.1 Sample NRT Prescription

Nicotine patches -

21mg one patch LA per day for 4 weeks. Apply patch on waking up in the morning. Next morning remove and apply new patch onto a different site.

Nicotine chewing gum.

4mg gum/ 2mg gum – 1-2 chewing gum PRN when urge /cravings occur, after first trying behavioural methods. Max 12/day for 2 weeks - 168 pieces

Advice:

Start all medicines and stop smoking on planned Quit date. Throw all cigarettes, lighter and ashtrays, and any souvenirs with brand logos before Quit date. For cravings, first trying behavioural methods as an alternative to smoking, such as Delaying, Drinking water, Deep breathing, Exercise, Calling someone supportive, prayer, etc. If cravings cannot be controlled, only then take chewing gum.

Plan:

Nicotine patches:

- 21 mg one patch LA per day for 4 weeks.

--> then 14mg patch, 1 patch per day for 2 weeks,

--> then 7mg patch, 1 patch per day for 2 weeks,

then stop.

Nicotine chewing gum: SOS for cravings, taper as cravings reduce.

REVIEW: 1 week after quitting, then monthly, to assess progress / any need for adjusting medication or behavioural methods. Review SOS earlier if about to relapse.

.....

Dr.